
 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
 
Tuesday, September 13, 2016                                                                                            City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                                            16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
Note:  Council will interview commission applicants from 5:40 to 7:00 pm 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
  
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

• Mayor’s Day of Concern for the Hungry Proclamation – Saturday, September 17, 2016 (Lila 
Henderson, Executive Director, Maple Valley Food Bank) 

• National Recovery Month – September 2016 (Jackie Berganio, King County Community & Human 
Services) 

• Proclamation Recognizing the Need for Adequate Resources for National Parks (Mayor Pro Tem 
Sean Smith) 

• Chris Williams Day – September 12, 2016 
 
RECEPTION TO HONOR TRAFFIC OFFICER CHRIS WILLIAMS 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, not 
the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes per 
speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows. * 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  August 9, 2016 Special Meeting – Joint Study Session with Human Services Commission 

Minutes (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Final Acceptance of Gerry Crick Skate Park Renovation Project (CIP 1013) (Newton). 
C-4. Best Parking Lot Cleaning (Street Sweeping) Agreement Amendment No. 2 (Junkin) 
C-5. WSDOT Local Agency Agreement Supplement No. 3 for SR 516:  Jenkins Creek to 185th Place SE 

(CIP 1127) Right-of-Way Acquisition (Vondran) 
C-6. Local Agency Real Estate Professional Services Consultant Agreement for SR 516:  Jenkins Creek to 

185th Place SE (CIP 1127) (Vondran) 
C-7. Resolution in Support of the Port of Seattle’s Economic Development Partnership Program (Bolli) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Consider Appointment to Planning Commission (Council) 
2. Consider Appointment to Human Services Commission (Council) 

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/


3. Consider Resolution Establishing Youth City Council (Bolli) 
4. 2016 Second Quarter Financial Report (Hendrickson) 

 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – if needed 
 
ADJOURN 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400). 



Consent Agenda Item C-1 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  September 13, 2016   
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  AUGUST 9, 2016 CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL 

MEETING - JOINT STUDY SESSION WITH HUMAN SERVICES 
COMMISSION MINUTES 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Sharon G. Scott, City Clerk 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  Proposed Minutes 
 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION:  
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance   _____ Resolution     X     Motion              Other  
 

Councilmember __________ moves, Councilmember ___________ 
seconds, to approve the August 9, 2016 City Council Special 
Meeting – Joint Study Session with Human Services Commission 
Minutes. 

1 of 132



Unapproved Draft – August 9, 2016 Special Meeting-Joint Study Session with Human Services 
Commission Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  September 13, 2016 
 
 

1 
 

City of Covington 
City Council Special Meeting 

Joint Study Session with Human Services Commission Minutes 
Tuesday, August 9, 2016 

 
The Special Meeting - Joint Study Session with the Human Services Commission was called to 
order in the City Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, 
Tuesday, August 9, 2016, at 6:03 p.m., with Mayor Wagner presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Jeff Wagner, Joe Cimaomo, Fran Hollums, Marlla Mhoon, and Sean Smith.  
 
COUNCILMEMBERS ABSENT: 
Mark Lanza and Margaret Harto. 
 
HUMAN SERVICES COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: 
Leslie Hamada, Emily Bykonen, Melissa Edlund-Oakley, Josh Max (arrived @ 6:10 p.m.), Brian 
Lord (arrived @ 6:20 p.m.). 
 
HUMAN SERVICES COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: 
Kasia Kelley. 
 
CITY STAFF PRESENT: 
Regan Bolli, City Manager; Victoria Throm, Personnel & Sr. Human Services Planner; and Sharon Scott, 
City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Mayor Wagner called the joint study session to order. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Councilmember Cimaomo moved and Mayor Pro Tem Smith seconded to 
Approve the Agenda.  Vote:  5-0.  Motion carried. 
 
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION: 
1.  Human Services Funding Application Process. 
 
Human Services Commission Chair Leslie Hamada gave the commission report and requested a 
2.5 percent increase to the human services budget for 2017.  Other commissioners provided input. 
 
Councilmembers asked questions and discussed with commissioners. 
 
Personnel and Sr. Human Services Planner Victoria Throm provided further information and 
responses to questions. 
 

2 of 132



Unapproved Draft – August 9, 2016 Special Meeting-Joint Study Session with Human Services 
Commission Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  September 13, 2016 
 
 

2 
 

Council Action:  There was Council consensus to recommend an amount of $136,000 to the 
human services budget to be considered during the budget process. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:50 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 
 

3 of 132



Consent Agenda Item C-2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  September 13, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS  
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  Vouchers:  Vouchers #34453-34527, including ACH payments, in the 
amount of $243,343.94, dated August 5, 2016; Electronic fund transfers in the amount of 
$729.51, dated August 8, 2016; Vouchers #34528-34529, in the amount of $2,200.00, dated 
August 11, 2016; Vouchers #34530-34594, including ACH payments and electronic fund 
transfers, in the amount of $663,063.75, dated August 19, 2016; Vouchers #34595-34604, 
including ACH payments and electronic fund transfers, in the amount of $4,345.75; Vouchers 
#34605-34652, including ACH payments and electronic fund transfers, in the amount of 
$281,437.33; Paylocity Payroll Checks #1005635715-1005635730 and Paylocity Payroll 
Checks #1005635819-1005635819 inclusive, plus employee direct deposits, in the amount of 
$202,140.96, dated August 12, 2016; Paylocity Payroll Checks #1005687457-1005687470 
inclusive, plus employee direct deposits, in the amount of $193,266.09, dated August 26, 2016; 
and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1005753570-1005753583 and Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1005753661-1005753661 inclusive, plus employee direct deposits, in the amount of 
$184,239.08, dated September 9, 2016. 
 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment Vouchers:  Vouchers #34453-34527, 
including ACH payments, in the amount of $243,343.94, dated August 5, 
2016; Electronic fund transfers in the amount of $729.51, dated August 8, 
2016; Vouchers #34528-34529, in the amount of $2,200.00, dated August 11, 
2016; Vouchers #34530-34594, including ACH payments and electronic 
fund transfers, in the amount of $663,063.75, dated August 19, 2016; 
Vouchers #34595-34604, including ACH payments and electronic fund 
transfers, in the amount of $4,345.75; Vouchers #34605-34652, including 
ACH payments and electronic fund transfers, in the amount of $281,437.33; 
Paylocity Payroll Checks #1005635715-1005635730 and Paylocity Payroll 
Checks #1005635819-1005635819 inclusive, plus employee direct deposits, 
in the amount of $202,140.96, dated August 12, 2016; Paylocity Payroll 
Checks #1005687457-1005687470 inclusive, plus employee direct deposits, 
in the amount of $193,266.09, dated August 26, 2016; and Paylocity Payroll 
Checks #1005753570-1005753583 and Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1005753661-1005753661 inclusive, plus employee direct deposits, in the 
amount of $184,239.08, dated September 9, 2016. 

 

4 of 132



5 of 132



6 of 132



7 of 132



8 of 132



9 of 132



10 of 132



11 of 132



12 of 132



13 of 132



14 of 132



15 of 132



16 of 132



17 of 132



18 of 132



19 of 132



20 of 132



21 of 132



22 of 132



23 of 132



24 of 132



25 of 132



26 of 132



27 of 132



28 of 132



29 of 132



30 of 132



31 of 132



32 of 132



33 of 132



34 of 132



35 of 132



36 of 132



37 of 132



38 of 132



39 of 132



40 of 132



41 of 132



42 of 132



43 of 132



44 of 132



45 of 132



46 of 132



47 of 132



48 of 132



49 of 132



50 of 132



Consent Agenda Item C-3 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  September 13, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: FINAL ACCEPTANCE OF GERRY CRICK SKATE PARK RENOVATION 

PROJECT (CIP 1013). 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Ethan Newton, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. Post installation inspection – Pro Series Ramps Building Requirements and Standards 
2. Draft Notice of Completion  
3. Photo of park and mural 
 
PREPARED BY:  Ethan Newton, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
EXPLANATION: 
On May 24, 2016, City Council authorized use of the National Joint Powers Alliance (NJPA) 
cooperative purchasing agreement to complete the purchase, delivery and installation of skate 
park equipment using NJPA vendor American Ramp Company (ARC). 
 
The original contract was for the amount of $110,721.43. Staff authorized two change orders.  
The first change order authorized a full-install, rather than a supervised community-build, to 
ensure proper installation and limit city liability related to the installation. The second change 
order authorized ARC to rent a forklift, rather than the city renting the forklift, for logistical 
reasons. The final revised contract was for the amount of $121,037.84. 
 
ARC delivered and began onsite installation on August 4, 2016. Completion of all contract work 
was completed on August 14, 2016.  The contractor has since submitted to the city all 
documentation required by the project contract and required by law. 
 
On July 26, 2016, City Council authorized the artist Aaron Lui-Kwan to install a public art mural 
at the Gerry Crick Skate Park. This project began on August 15, 2016 and was completed on 
August 21, 2016. Aaron Lui-Kwan was assisted in the painting of the mural by Covington Art 
Commissioner Leslie Spiro and numerous community members, including several users of the 
skate park. Arts Commission members volunteered their services and sealed the artwork prior to 
the park being reopened. 
  

51 of 132



FISCAL IMPACT: 
The following is a financial summary of the project: 
 
 
Funding: Approved 

Budget Actual 
King County Youth Sports Facilities Grant $30,000.00 $30,000.00 
MultiCare donation 8,500.00 1,000.00 
Sale of surplus (old) skate park equipment 0.00 2,775.50 
Park Fee-In-Lieu 21,500.00 32,654.74 
General Fund 60,900.00 62,686.18 

Total Funding $120,900.00 $129,116.42 
   
   
Expenditures:   

Engineering $5,600.00 $2,500.00 
Permits 2,500.00 2,892.40 
Contract for equipment purchase, delivery and 
installation 111,900.00 110,721.43 

Change order #1, full-installation 0.00 9,121.81 
Change order #2, forklift rental 0.00 1,194.60 

Public art mural 900.00 2,686.18 
Total Expenditures $120,900.00 $129,116.42 

 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  ____ Ordinance               Resolution       X    Motion             Other  
 

Council member _______________ moves, Council member ______________ 
seconds, to accept the Gerry Crick Stake Park Renovation Project (CIP 1013), in 
the amount of $129,116.42, as completed, including the public works contract 
with American Ramp Company, with the date of final acceptance as September 
13, 2016. 

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 

52 of 132



ATTACHMENT 1

53 of 132



54 of 132



55 of 132



Revised #

Assigned to:

UBI Number:

Yes No

Yes
Contractor's Name

Date: Contractor's UBI Number: 

Date Work Accepted

Federally funded transportation project?           

Name & Mailing Address of Public Agency

E-mail Address

Contract Number
Notice is hereby given relative to the completion of contract or project described below

Description of Work Done/Include Jobsite Address(es)

Affidavit ID*
No          (if yes, provide Contract Bond Statement below)

NOTICE OF COMPLETION OF PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT

Project Name

Date Assigned:

Job Order Contracting

Date Contract Awarded

Telephone #

Bond Number:
Retainage Bond Contract/Payment bond (valid for federally funded transportation projects)

Name:  

Department Use Only

Original

If Retainage is not withheld, please select one of the following and List Surety's Name & Bond Number.

Date Work Commenced Date Work Completed

Contractor Address

Were Subcontracters used on this project? If so, please complete Addendum A.      Yes No
$
$ $
$ $
$ $
$
$ $

Contact Name: Title:

F215-038-000 04-2014

Email Address: Phone Number:

p

Additions    ( + )
Amount Retained

REV 31 0020e (4/28/14)

Amount of Sales Tax 

Contract Amount

Sub-Total
Reductions  ( - ) Amount Disbursed

TOTAL

Note: The Disbursing Officer must submit this completed notice immediately after acceptance of the work done under this contract.
NO PAYMENT SHALL BE MADE FROM RETAINED FUNDS until receipt of all release certificates.                                                                                 
Submitting Form: Please submit the completed form by email to all three agencies below. 

TOTAL

Liquidated Damages

Comments:

(If various rates apply, please send a breakdown)

NOTE: These two totals must be equal

p

     Affidavit ID* - No L&I release will be granted until all affidavits are listed.

Contract Release(855) 545-8163, option # 4
ContractRelease@LNI.WA.GOV

Employment Security Department
Registration, Inquiry, 
Standards & Coordination 
Unit(360) 902-9450
publicworks@esd.wa.gov

Department of RevenuePublic Works Section
(360) 704-5650
PWC@dor.wa.gov

V e ( / / )

ATTACHMENT 2

56 of 132



ATTACHMENT 3

57 of 132



 Consent Agenda Item C-4 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  September 13, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:   AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AMENDMENT #2 TO 

THE AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES WITH BEST PARKING LOT CLEANING 
FOR JOINT COVINGTON/MAPLE VALLEY STREET SWEEPING. 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Don Vondran, Public Works Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  

1. Contract No. 1316-14 Original Contract with Best Parking Lot Cleaning 
2. Amendment #1 to Agreement for Services with Best Parking Lot Cleaning 
3. Amendment #2 to Agreement for Services with Best Parking Lot Cleaning 

 
PREPARED BY:  Shellie Bates, Programs Supervisor 
 
EXPLANATION:  
In September 2014 the city council awarded the contract for street sweeping services to Best 
Parking Lot Cleaning, in an amount not to exceed $119,521, to perform street sweeping services 
in Covington and Maple Valley as outlined in the agreement (Contract No. 1316-14, Attachment 
No. 1). 
 
Section 3 of the current agreement between the City of Covington and Best Parking Lot Cleaning 
states, “This contract may be renewed each September for the succeeding two (2) years (2015/2016 
and 2016/2017) upon performance audit and approval by the City.  The unit price of the contract 
will be adjusted each year using the Seattle-Tacoma Consumer Price Index – Urban (CPI-W) rate 
starting with June of 2014 as the initial benchmark and the rate in June in subsequent years to be 
applied in October of that year.” 
 
On September 22, 2015, the city council authorized the city manager to execute Amendment #1 
to the agreement to extend the term of the agreement for one year until September 30, 2016. 
(Attachment No. 2) 
 
Pursuant to Section 3 of the current agreement, Best Parking Lot Cleaning has fulfilled their 
obligation under the terms of the agreement.  City staff has reviewed their performance over the 
past year and recommends renewal of the contract for another twelve months.  The Consumer 
Price Index for Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Works (CPI-W) for Seattle-Tacoma-
Bremerton, WA for June 2016 is 1.9937 percent.  Accordingly, upon execution of the proposed 
Amendment #2 (Attachment No. 3), the unit price of the contract will increase by 1.9937 percent 
for the next twelve-month renewal term. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Do not amend the existing street sweeping agreement and advertise the project for competitive 
bids.  This alternative would impact the city with an interruption in the street sweeping service, 
as the current agreement would expire on September 30, 2016. 

58 of 132



 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The 2016 budgeted amount for this service is $121,450 (Surface Water Management Fund).  The 
2017 budgeted amount for this service is $121,450 (Surface Water Management Fund).  The 
annual budgeted amount did not increase since there are additional funds ($7,193) available for 
discretionary services (emergency response and storm clean up). 
 
With the above changes, Amendment #2 will include an amount not to exceed $121,450. 
 
The City of Covington’s portion of the contract is $63,836 and the City of Maple Valley’s 
portion is $50,421.  The remainder of the contract ($7,193) is for emergency response and storm 
clean up sweeping services. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:              Ordinance            Resolutions       X     Motion         Other 
 

Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to authorize the City Manager to execute Amendment #2 to 
Contract No. 1316-14 with Best Parking Lot Cleaning for joint 
Covington/Maple Valley street sweeping. 

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 

59 of 132



ATTACHMENT 1

60 of 132



61 of 132



62 of 132



63 of 132



64 of 132



65 of 132



66 of 132



67 of 132



68 of 132



69 of 132



70 of 132



71 of 132



72 of 132



ATTACHMENT 2

73 of 132



CITY OF COVINGTON 
AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 

Amendment #2 

Between the City of Covington and Best Parking Lot Cleaning 

That portion of Contract No. 1316-14 between the City of Covington and Best Parking 
Lot Cleaning entered into by the parties on the 23rd day of September, 2014, is amended 
pursuant to Section 17 of said Agreement, as follows: 

1. Term of Agreement.  Section 3 of the Agreement shall be amended to
extend the term of the Agreement until September 30, 2017.

2. Compensation.  Section 4.1 of the Agreement shall be amended to include
the Seattle-Tacoma Consumer Price Index – Urban (CPI-W) rate for June
2016 of 1.9937 percent for an amount not to exceed $121,450.

All other provisions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the last day and year 
written below. 

CITY OF COVINGTON BEST PARKING LOT CLEANING 

____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
By: Regan Bolli By: ______________________________ 
Its: City Manager Its: ______________________________ 
Date: ______________________________ Date: ______________________________ 

Attest: Approved as to form: 

____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk Sara Springer, City Attorney 

ATTACHMENT 3

74 of 132



Consent Agenda Item C-5 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: September 13, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE LOCAL AGENCY 

AGREEMENT SUPPLEMENT NUMBER 3 WITH WSDOT TO OBLIGATE 
FEDERAL FUNDS FOR SR 516:  JENKINS CREEK TO 185TH PLACE SE (CIP 
1127) RIGHT-OF-WAY ACQUISITION 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Regan Bolli, City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):   
1. Local Agency Agreement Supplement No. 3 
 
PREPARED BY:  Don Vondran, Public Works Director 
 
EXPLANATION: 
On March 13, 2012, the city council authorized the use of grant funding received from the 
Washington State Department of Transportation (WSDOT) to design CIP 1127, SR 516 – 
Jenkins Creek to 185th Place SE.  The WSDOT portion of the grant was $809,602.  The city has 
used impact fees as the local match for that grant.  Tetra Tech is the design consultant for the 
project. 
 
The city also received an additional $800,000 from the legislature in the 2012 Supplemental 
Transportation Budget.  Those funds were planned to be used during the right-of-way acquisition 
phase.  CIP 1127 is now to the point where we can obligate those funds for right-of-way 
acquisition.  The total amount of the grant designated for right-of-way acquisition is $800,000.  
We will use those grant funds for consultant work ($380,000), city staff time ($20,000), right-of-
way purchase ($380,000), and WSDOT review ($20,000).  Unlike the funds received during the 
design phase, this $800,000 grant does not require any local match.  Once the funds are obligated 
we can contract with a consultant to assist city staff with acquiring the necessary property for 
right-of-way. We anticipate beginning acquisition this fall. There is a separate agenda item to 
authorize the consultant agreement at this same council meeting. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The federal funds remaining to be obligated is $800,000.  Based on the current estimate, we do not 
need any city funds to proceed with right-of-way acquisition.  Once we receive authorization from 
WSDOT we will proceed. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  ____ Ordinance               Resolution       X    Motion             Other  
 

Council member ______________ moves, Council member ______________ 
seconds, to authorize the City Manager to execute Local Agency Agreement 
Supplement Number 3 with WSDOT to obligate federal funds for SR 516:  
Jenkins Creek to 185th Place SE (CIP 1127) right -of-way acquisition. 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 

75 of 132



DOT Form 140-041
Revised 05/2015

Page 1

Local Agency Agreement Supplement
Agency Supplement Number

Federal Aid Project Number Agreement Number CFDA No.   20.205
(Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance)

The Local Agency requests to supplement the agreement entered into and executed on 
All provisions in the basic agreement remain in effect except as modified by this supplement. 
The change to the agreement are as follows: 
Project Description
Name  Length 
Termini 
Description of Work    No Change 

Reason for Supplement

Are you claiming indirect cost rate?   Yes    No Project Agreement End Date 
Does this change require additional Right of Way or Easements?  Yes  No Advertisement Date:

Type of Work
Estimate of Funding

(1) 
Previous 

Agreement/Suppl.

(2) 
Supplement

(3) 
Estimated Total 
Project Funds

(4) 
Estimated Agency 

Funds

(5) 
Estimated Federal 

Funds
PE

% a. Agency
b. Other

Federal Aid 
Participation 
Ratio for PE

c. Other
d. State
e. Total PE Cost Estimate (a+b+c+d)

Right of Way
% f. Agency

g. Other
Federal Aid 
Participation 
Ratio for RW

h. Other
i. State
j. Total R/W Cost Estimate (f+g+h+i)

Construction
% k. Contract

l. Other
m. Other

Federal Aid 
Participation 
Ratio for CN

n. Other
o. Agency
p. State
q. Total CN Cost Estimate (k+l+m+n+o+p)

r. Total Project Cost Estimate (e+j+q)
The Local Agency further stipulates that pursuant to said Title 23, regulations and policies and procedures, and as a 
condition to payment of the Federal funds obligated, it accepts and will comply with the  applicable provisions. 
Agency Official Washington State Department of Transportation

By By  
Title Director, Local Program 

Date Executed 

ATTACHMENT 1

76 of 132



DOT Form 140-041
Revised 05/2015

Page 2

Agency Supplement Number

Federal Aid Project Number Agreement Number CFDA No.   20.205
(Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance)

VI. Payment and Partial Reimbursement
The total cost of the project, including all review and engineering costs and other expenses of the State, is to be paid 
by the Agency and by the Federal Government. Federal funding shall be in accordance with the Federal Transportation 
Act, as amended, 2 CFR Part 200. The State shall not be ultimately responsible for any of the costs of the project. The 
Agency shall be ultimately responsible for all costs associated with the project which are not reimbursed by the Federal 
Government. Nothing in this agreement shall be construed as a promise by the State as to the amount or nature of federal 
participation in this project. 
The Agency shall bill the state for federal aid project costs incurred in conformity with applicable federal and state laws. 
The agency shall minimize the time elapsed between receipt of federal aid funds and subsequent payment of incurred 
costs. Expenditures by the Local Agency for maintenance, general administration, supervision, and other overhead 
shall not be eligible for federal participation unless a current indirect cost plan has been prepared in accordance with 
the regulations outlined in 2 CFR Part 200 - Uniform Admin. Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards, and retained for audit.  
The State will pay for State incurred costs on the project. Following payment, the State shall bill the Federal Government 
for reimbursement of those costs eligible for federal participation to the extent that such costs are attributable and properly 
allocable to this project. The State shall bill the Agency for that portion of State costs which were not reimbursed by the 
Federal Government (see Section IX).

VII. Audit of Federal Consultant Contracts
The Agency, if services of a consultant are required, shall be responsible for audit of the consultant’s records to determine 
eligible federal aid costs on the project. The report of said audit shall be in the Agency’s files and made available to the 
State and the Federal Government. 
An audit shall be conducted by the WSDOT Internal Audit Office in accordance with generally accepted governmental 
auditing standards as issued by the United States General Accounting Office by the Comptroller General of the United 
States; WSDOT Manual M 27-50, Consultant Authorization, Selection, and Agreement Administration; memoranda of 
understanding between WSDOT and FHWA; and 2 CFR Part 200.501 - Audit Requirements. 
If upon audit it is found that overpayment or participation of federal money in ineligible items of cost has occurred, the 
Agency shall reimburse the State for the amount of such overpayment or excess participation.

IX. Payment of Billing
The Agency agrees that if payment or arrangement for payment of any of the State’s billing relative to the project (e.g., 
State force work, project cancellation, overpayment, cost ineligible for federal participation, etc.) is not made to the State 
within 45 days after the Agency has been billed, the State shall effect reimbursement of the total sum due from the regular 
monthly fuel tax allotments to the Agency from the Motor Vehicle Fund. No additional Federal project funding will be 
approved until full payment is received unless otherwise directed by the Director, Local Programs. 
Project Agreement End Date - This date is based on your projects Period of Performance (2 CFR Part 200.309). 
Any costs incurred after the Project Agreement End Date are NOT eligible for federal reimbursement. All eligible costs 
incurred prior to the Project Agreement End Date must be submitted for reimbursement within 90 days after the Project 
Agreement End Date or they become ineligible for federal reimbursement.

VIII. Single Audit Act
The Agency, as a subrecipient of federal funds, shall adhere to the federal regulations outlined in 2 CFR Part 200.501 as 
well as all applicable federal and state statutes and regulations. A subrecipient who expends $750,000 or more in federal 
awards from all sources during a given fiscal year shall have a single or program-specific audit performed for that year in 
accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR Part 200.501. Upon conclusion of the audit, the Agency shall be responsible for 
ensuring that a copy of the report is transmitted promptly to the State.

XVII. Assurances
Local Agencies receiving Federal funding from the USDOT or its operating administrations (i.e., Federal Highway 
Administration, Federal Transit Administration, Federal Aviation Administration) are required to submit a written policy 
statement, signed by the Agency Executive and addressed to the State, documenting that all programs, activities and 
services will be conducted in compliance with Section 504 and the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).

77 of 132



Direct Total

Consultant 297,000.00  

Additional expense for potential 

scope amendments to the Lump 

Sum contract 

81,000.00    380,000.00     

PFE / Right-of-Way 247,586.00  
Additional expense for potential 

negotiated settlements
142,414.00  380,000.00     

Agency 20,000.00        

Hours Rate Total

Management 25.00            80.00                                              2,000.00       

Project Staff 200.00          60.00                                              12,000.00    

Administration 25.00            40.00                                              1,000.00       

City Attorney 50.00            100.00                                            5,000.00       

WSDOT 20,000.00        

800,000.00     

City of Covington
SR 516; Jenkins Creek to 185th Place SE

City project 1127
WSDOT SUPPLEMENT #3                 ESTIMATE FOR RIGHT-OF-WAY

Contingency

78 of 132



  

 Consent Agenda Item C-6 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  September 13, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:   AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT FOR 

SERVICES WITH ABACO PACIFIC, INC. (ABACO 2016-1) FOR REAL 
ESTATE SERVICES FOR SR 516:  JENKINS CREEK TO 185TH PLACE SE (CIP 
1127).  

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Don Vondran, Public Works Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):    
1. WSDOT Standard “Local Agency Real Estate Professional Services Lump Sum Consultant 

Agreement” with Abaco Pacific, Inc. (Abaco 2016-1) 
 
PREPARED BY:  Shellie Bates, Programs Supervisor/Public Works 
 
EXPLANATION:  
In December of 2013 and January of 2014 staff solicited qualifications for right-of-way 
acquisition services for CIP 1127.  Six submittals were received and staff selected three for an 
interview.  In March of 2014 staff selected Abaco Pacific, Inc. as the most qualified to perform 
the work.  Abaco Pacific, Inc. has provided the city with quality services over the years.  The 
city’s current on-call contract with Abaco Pacific for CIP 1127 expires at the end of 2017.  The 
term of this agreement will extend the city’s use of services from Abaco Pacific until December 
31, 2018. 
 
Staff is recommending that this agreement be approved and that the city continue its productive 
relationship with Abaco Pacific, Inc. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   

1. Not authorize the city manager to execute the agreement for services and direct staff to 
negotiate a new agreement with Abaco Pacific. 

2. Revise the proposed agreement. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
Real estate services are included as part of the right of way costs budgeted in each individual 
Capital Improvement Project (CIP).  CIP 1127 has $800,000.00 in federal funds allocated to the 
project, including the $297,000.00 for this agreement with Abaco Pacific. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution     X   Motion         Other 
 
 Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 

seconds, to authorize the City Manager to execute Agreement for Services 
with Abaco Pacific, Inc., in substantial form as that presented, in the amount 
of $297,000 for real estate services for CIP 1127. 

 
REVIEWED BY: City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 

79 of 132



Local Agency Real Estate Professional 
Services Lump Sum Consultant Agreement 

Agreement Number:     Abaco 2016-1 Does this Require DES filing? Yes No 

Firm/Organization Legal Name (do not use dba’s): 

Abaco Pacific, Inc. 
Address 

13468 456th Place SE 
Federal Aid Number 

STP  0516(22) 

UBI Number 

602-816-096
Federal TIN or SSN Number 

26-2246634
Execution Date 
  September 13, 2016 

Completion Date 
  December 31, 2018 

1099 Form Required 

Yes No 

Federal Participation 

Yes No 
Project Title 

SE 272nd Street (SR516) between Jenkins Creek and 185th Place SE (CIP 1127) 
Description of Work 

Abaco Pacific, Inc. will provide comprehensive Right-of-Way Acquisition Services including acquisition and 
relocation (as necessary) services of all necessary property rights for the Project according to the Project’s 
approved Right of Way Plan and as further described in the Scope of Work (Exhibit A). All activities shall be 
conducted in compliance with the City's Right of Way Procedures and in accordance with the state Uniform 
Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Act (Ch. 8.26 RCW) and state regulations (Ch. 468-100 
WAC) and applicable federal regulations. 

Yes % No DBE Participation 
Yes % No MBE Participation 
Yes % No WBE Participation 
Yes % No SBE Participation 

Maximum Amount Payable:  $ 297,000 

Index of Exhibits 
Exhibit A Scope of Work 
Exhibit B DBE Participation 
Exhibit D Prime Consultant Cost Computations 
Exhibit E Sub-consultant Cost Computations 
Exhibit F Title VI Assurances 
Exhibit G Certification Documents 
Exhibit H Liability Insurance Increase 
Exhibit I Alleged Consultant Design Error Procedures 
Exhibit J Consultant Claim Procedures 

Agreement Number: Abaco 2016-1 

Local Agency Real Estate Professional Services Lump Sum Consultant Agreement Page 1 of 10 
Revised 4/4/2016 

ATTACHMENT 1

80 of 132



Agreement Number: Abaco 2016-1

Local Agency Real Estate Professional Services Lump Sum Consultant Agreement 
Revised 4/4/2016 

Page 2 of 10 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into as shown in the “Execution Date” on page one (1) in the heading 
of this AGREEMENT, between the City of Covington, Washington, hereinafter called the “AGENCY,” and 
Abaco Pacific, Inc. referenced on page one (1) in the heading of this AGREEMENT, hereinafter called the 
“CONSULTANT.” 

WHEREAS, the AGENCY desires to accomplish the work referenced in the section I. “Description of Work” 
section of this AGREEMENT and hereafter called the “SERVICES”; and does not have sufficient staff to meet 
the required commitment and therefore deems it advisable and desirable to engage the assistance of a 
CONSULTANT to provide the necessary SERVICES; and 

WHEREAS, the CONSULTANT represents that they comply with the Washington State Statutes relating to 
professional registration, if applicable, and has signified a willingness to furnish consulting Services to the 
AGENCY. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms and conditions contained herein, or attached and 
incorporated and made a part hereof, the AGENCY, and the CONSULTANT mutually agree as follows: 

I. Description of Work

The Scope of Work and projected level of effort required for these SERVICES is described in Exhibit “A” 
attached hereto and by this reference made a part of this AGREEMENT. 

If, due to the CONSULTANT’S error or oversight, corrections to the SERVICES contracted for herein are 
necessary, the CONSULTANT will make such corrections at no additional cost to the AGENCY and will 
submit such corrections to the AGENCY within ten (10) days of receipt of the AGENCY'S request. 

II. General Requirements

CONSULTANT shall, at all times, comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, codes, 
ordinances, rules, regulations, decrees, directives, guidelines, etc., (together “Laws”) which may impact or 
apply to the performance of SERVICES under this AGREEMENT, regardless of whether such Laws are 
modified or are enacted during the term of this AGREEMENT. 

III. Period of Performance

This AGREEMENT shall commence on the date executed by the AGENCY and the CONSULTANT shown in 
"Execution Date" in the heading of this AGREEMENT on page one (1) and shall be completed on the date 
shown in “Completion Date” in the heading of this AGREEMENT on page one (1), unless modified by a 
written AGREEMENT revision extending the “Completion Date” or unless terminated sooner as provided 
herein. 

Upon completion or termination of this AGREEMENT, the CONSULTANT shall turn over all documents, 
records and file materials to the AGENCY. 

IV. Payment Provisions

The CONSULTANT shall be paid by the AGENCY for completed work and SERVICES, deemed to be 
satisfactory by the AGENCY, rendered under this AGREEMENT as provided hereinafter. Such payment shall 
be full compensation for work performed or SERVICES rendered and for all labor, materials, supplies, 
equipment, and incidentals necessary to complete the SERVICES specified in section I. “Description of Work”, 

81 of 132



Agreement Number: Abaco 2016-1

Local Agency Real Estate Professional Services Lump Sum Consultant Agreement 
Revised 4/4/2016 

Page 3 of 10 

unless otherwise specified in section XVII. “Special Provisions.”   The CONSULTANT shall conform to all 
applicable portions of 48 CFR Part 31. 

A. Lump Sum AGREEMENT: Payment for all consulting SERVICES shall be on the basis of a lump sum
“Maximum Amount Payable” as shown in the heading on page one (1) of this AGREEMENT.

1. Maximum Amount Payable: The Maximum Amount Payable by the AGENCY to the
CONSULTANT under this AGREEMENT shall not exceed the amount shown on page one (1)
in the heading of this AGREEMENT unless modified by written contract revision prior to the
CONSULTANT exceeding this amount. No minimum amount payable is guaranteed under this
AGREEMENT.

B. Final Payment: Final Payment of any balance due the CONSULTANT of the gross amount earned will
be made promptly upon its verification by the AGENCY after the completion of SERVICES under this
AGREEMENT, contingent, if applicable, upon receipt of all reports, electronic data, and other related
documents which are required to be furnished under this AGREEMENT. Acceptance of such Final
Payment by the CONSULTANT shall constitute a release of all claims for payment, which the
CONSULTANT may have against the AGENCY unless such claims are specifically reserved in writing
and transmitted to the AGENCY by the CONSULTANT prior to its acceptance. Said Final Payment
shall not, however, be a bar to any claims that the AGENCY may have against the CONSULTANT or to
any remedies the AGENCY may pursue with respect to such claims.

The payment of any billing will not constitute an agreement as to the appropriateness of any item and at
the time of final audit, all required adjustments will be made and reflected in a final payment. In the
event that such final audit reveals an overpayment to the CONSULTANT, the CONSULTANT will
refund such overpayment to the AGENCY within thirty (30) calendar days of notice of the overpayment.
Such refund shall not constitute a waiver by the CONSULTANT for any claims relating to the validity
of a finding by the AGENCY of overpayment. Per the WSDOT’S “Audit Guide for CONSULTANTs,”
Chapter 23 “Resolution Procedures,” the CONSULTANT has twenty (20) working days after receipt of
the final post-audit to begin the appeal process to the AGENCY for audit findings.

V. Compensation

The CONSULTANT shall be paid $ 297,000  for all SERVICES and expenses under this AGREEMENT, 

provided that the total reimbursement under this AGREEMENT shall not exceed $ 297,000 . Such payment 

82 of 132



Agreement Number: Abaco 2016-1 

Local Agency Real Estate Professional Services Lump Sum Consultant Agreement 
Revised 4/4/2016 

Page 4 of 10 

 

shall include all the CONSULTANT’S expenses in the performance of this AGREEMENT unless otherwise 
specified in Section XVII “Special Provisions.” The CONSULTANT’S invoice shall include: the project title, 
description of the services rendered, and the dates worked. 

 
VI. Records and Accounts 

 
The CONSULTANT and any authorized sub-consultant, or any other person or firm, shall keep detailed records 
relating to the charges made and expenses incurred for work required by this AGREEMENT. 

 
The CONSULTANT’s accounting records pertaining to this AGREEMENT shall be available for inspection by 
the representatives of the AGENCY, the State and the United States, at the office of the CONSULTANT. The 
CONSULTANT shall include in any sub-consultant agreement/contract or any agreement/contract with any 
person or firm a provision requiring such sub-consultant, person, or firm to make its financial records available 
for inspection by the AGENCY in accordance with this provision. 
The accounting record referred to in the preceding paragraph shall be available for inspection during normal 
business hours and shall be retained by the CONSULTANT or sub-consultant, or any other person or firm, for a 
period of three (3) years following final payment from the AGENCY to the CONSULTANT with the following 
exception: if any litigation, claim, or audit is started before the expiration of the three (3) year retention period, 
the records shall be retained until all litigation, claim, or audit findings involving the records have been 
resolved. 

 
The CONSULTANT further agrees that any duly authorized representative of the AGENCY, the State or of the 
United States, in the official conduct of its business shall have access to and the right to examine any directly 
pertinent books, documents, papers, photographic negatives, and records of the CONSULTANT involving the 
SERVICES provided under the terms of this AGREEMENT at any time during normal business hours during 
the life of this AGREEMENT and for three (3) years after the date of the final payment under this 
AGREEMENT. 

 
An audit may be performed on this AGREEMENT. The audit, if any, will be performed by the WSDOT’s 
Internal Audit Office. 

 
VII. Performance of Services 

 
In the performance of the SERVICES under this AGREEMENT, the CONSULTANT shall comply with all 
applicable AGENCY regulations, State and Federal laws, regulations and procedures. 

 
1. Non-delegation 

The SERVICES to be furnished under the terms of this AGREEMENT shall be performed by the 
CONSULTANT and the CONSULTANT’S bona fide employees, and shall not be delegated to any other 
person or firm. 

 
2. Subcontracting 

The CONSULTANT shall not hire sub-consultants or any other person or firm to provide SERVICES under 
this AGREEMENT except pursuant to a revision of this AGREEMENT as authorized in Section XVIII 
“Modification of Agreement.” All applicable portions of this AGREEMENT shall be contained in the 
subcontract between the CONSULTANT and its sub-consultant(s). 

 
The CONSULTANT shall remove any employee from assignment to perform SERVICES under this 
AGREEMENT immediately upon receipt of written request to do so from the AGENCY. 

 

83 of 132



Agreement Number: Abaco 2016-1 

Local Agency Real Estate Professional Services Lump Sum Consultant Agreement 
Revised 4/4/2016 

Page 5 of 10 

 

The CONSULTANT warrants that, if it is full or partially employed by any public agency other than the 
AGENCY, its acceptance of this AGREEMENT is with the consent of such agency; that the CONSULTANT 
shall spend no time in the performance require in this AGREEMENT during which time the CONSULTANT 
should normally be employed and paid by such agency; and that the acceptance of this AGREEMENT will not 
interfere with any obligations the CONSULTANT may have to such agency. 

 
VIII. Employment and Organizational Conflict of Interest 

 
The CONSULTANT warrants that they have not employed or retained any company or person, other than a 
bona fide employee working solely for the CONSULTANT, to solicit or secure this AGREEMENT, and that it 
has not paid or agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the 
CONSULTANT, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or any other consideration, contingent 
upon or resulting from the award or making of this AGREEMENT. For breach or violation of this warrant, the 
AGENCY shall have the right to annul this AGREEMENT without liability or, in its discretion, to deduct 
fromthis AGREEMENT price or consideration or otherwise recover the full amount of such fee, commission, 
percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or contingent fee. 

 
Any and all employees of the CONSULTANT or other persons while engaged in the performance of any work 
or SERVICES required of the CONSULTANT under this AGREEMENT, shall be considered employees of the 
CONSULTANT only and not of the AGENCY, and any and all claims that may arise under any Workmen’s 
Compensation Act on behalf of said employees or other persons while so engaged, and any and all claims made 
by a third party as a consequence of any act or omission on the part of the CONSULTANT’S employees or 
other persons while so engaged on any of the work or SERVICES provided to be rendered herein, shall be the 
sole obligation and responsibility of the CONSULTANT. 

 
The CONSULTANT shall not engage, on a full- or part-time basis, or other basis, during the period of this 
AGREEMENT, any professional or technical personnel who are, or have been, at any time during the period of 
this AGREEMENT, in the employ of the United States Department of Transportation or the AGENCY, except 
regularly retired employees, without written consent of the public employer of such person if he/she will be 
working on this AGREEMENT for the CONSULTANT. 

 
The CONSULTANT shall comply with the Federal Fair Labor Standards Act and any other legislation affecting 
its employees and the rules and regulations issued there under; and shall save the AGENCY free, clear and 
harmless from all actions, claims, demands and expenses arising out of said Act and any rules and regulations 
that are or may be promulgated in connection therewith. 

 
The CONSULTANT assumes full responsibility for the payment of all payroll taxes, use, sales, income or any 
other form of taxes, fees, licenses, excises, or payments required by any Federal or State legislation which are 
now or which may be enacted during the term of this AGREEMENT as to all the CONSULTANT’S employees, 
and as to all the duties, activities, and requirements of the CONSULTANT in the performance of this 
AGREEMENT. 

 
The CONSULTANT shall comply with the WSDOT’s Organizational Conflict of Interest Policy, WSDOT 
Manual 3043, and revisions thereto http://www.wsdot.wa.gov/Publications/Manuals/M3043.htm, and its 
requirements for employees, the CONSULTANT firm and any entities created to do business with the 
AGENCY. 

 
IX. Nondiscrimination 

 
During the performance of this AGREEMENT, the CONSULTANT, for itself, its assignees and successors in 

84 of 132

http://www.wsdot.wa.gov/Publications/Manuals/M3043.htm


Agreement Number: Abaco 2016-1

Local Agency Real Estate Professional Services Lump Sum Consultant Agreement 
Revised 4/4/2016 

Page 6 of 10 

interest, agrees as follows: 

1. Compliance with Laws and Regulations
The CONSULTANT shall comply with the regulations relative to nondiscrimination in Federally assisted
programs of the Department of Transportation, Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 21, as they may
be amended from time to time, hereinafter referred to as the “REGULATIONS”, which are herein
incorporated by reference and made a part of this AGREEMENT. The CONSULTANT shall comply with
the State Law Against Discrimination, Chapter 49.60 RCW and any REGULATIONS adopted thereto.

2. Nondiscrimination
The CONSULTANT with regard to the work performed by it during the AGREEMENT, shall not
discriminate on the grounds of age, sex, marital status, race, creed, color, national origin, or the presence of
any sensory, mental, or physical handicap unless based upon a bona fide occupational qualification, in the
selection and retention of subcontractors, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment.  The
CONSULTANT shall not participate either directly or indirectly in the discrimination of prohibited by
Chapter 49.60 RCW or by section 21.5 of the REGULATIONS, including employment practices when the
AGREEMENT covers a program set forth in Appendix B of the REGULATIONS.

3. Solicitation for Sub-consultants, Including Procurement of Materials and Equipment
In all solicitations either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by the CONSULTANT for work to be
performed under a subcontract, including procurement of materials or leases of equipment, each potential
sub-consultant or supplier shall be notified by the CONSULTANT of the CONSULTANT'S obligations
under this AGREEMENT and the REGULATIONS relative to nondiscrimination on the above grounds.

4. Information and Reports
The CONSULTANT shall provide all information and reports required by the REGULATIONS; or
directives issued pursuant thereto, and shall permit access to its books, records, accounts or other sources of
information, and its facilities as may be determined by the AGENCY or the Federal Highway
Administration to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such REGULATIONS, directives or laws.
Where any information required of a CONSULTANT is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or
refused to furnish this information, the CONSULTANT shall so certify to the AGENCY, WSDOT, or the
Federal Highway Administration as appropriate, and shall set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the
information.

5. Sanctions for Noncompliance
In the event of the CONSULTANT’s noncompliance with the discrimination provisions of this
AGREEMENT, the AGENCY shall impose such AGREEMENT sanctions as it may determine to be
appropriate, including but not limited to (1) withholding of payments to the CONSULTANT under this
AGREEMENT until the CONSULTANT complies, and/or (2) cancellation, termination, or suspension of
this AGREEMENT in whole or in part.

6. Incorporation of Provisions
The CONSULTANT shall include the provisions of paragraphs 1 through 6 in every subcontract, including
procurements of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the REGULATIONS, or directives
issued pursuant thereto. The CONSULTANT shall take such action with respect to any subcontract or
procurement as the AGENCY, WSDOT, or Federal Highway Administration may direct as a means of
enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance; provided, however, that, in the event a
CONSULTANT becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or supplier as a
result of such direction, the CONSULTANT may request the AGENCY to enter into such litigation to
protect the interests of the AGENCY and / or WSDOT; and, in addition, the CONSULTANT may request

85 of 132



Agreement Number: Abaco 2016-1

Local Agency Real Estate Professional Services Lump Sum Consultant Agreement 
Revised 4/4/2016 

Page 7 of 10 

the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States. 

X. Termination

The right is reserved by the AGENCY to terminate this AGREEMENT at any time with or without cause upon 
ten (10) days written notice to the CONSULTANT. 

In the event this AGREEMENT is terminated by the AGENCY, other than for default on the part of the 
CONSULTANT, a final payment shall be made to the CONSULTANT which, when added to any payments 
previously made, shall total the same percentage of the Lump Sum Amount as the work completed at the time 
of termination is to the total work required for the SERVICES. In addition, the CONSULTANT shall be paid 
for any authorized extra work completed. 

No payment shall be made for any SERVICES completed after ten (10) days following receipt by the 
CONSULTANT of the notice to terminate. If the accumulated payment made to the CONSULTANT prior to 
Notice of Termination exceeds the total amount that would be due when computed as set forth in paragraph two 
(2) of this section, then no final payment shall be due and the CONSULTANT shall immediately reimburse the
AGENCY for any excess paid.

If the services of the CONSULTANT are terminated by the AGENCY for default on the part of the 
CONSULTANT, the above formula for payment shall not apply. 

In the event of a termination for default, the amount to be paid to the CONSULTANT shall be determined by 
the AGENCY with consideration given to the actual costs incurred by the CONSULTANT in performing 
SERVICES to the date of termination, the amount of SERVICES originally required which was satisfactorily 
completed to date of termination, whether that SERVICE is in a form or a type which is usable to the AGENCY 
at the time of termination, the cost to the AGENCY of employing another firm to complete the SERVICES 
required and the time which may be required to do so, and other factors which affect the value to the AGENCY 
of the SERVICES performed at the time of termination. Under no circumstances shall payment made under this 
subsection exceed the amount, which would have been made using the formula set forth in paragraph two (2) of 
this section. 

If it is determined for any reason that the CONSULTANT was not in default or that the CONSULTANT’s 
failure to perform is without the CONSULTANT’s or its employee’s fault or negligence, the termination shall 
be deemed to be a termination for the convenience of the AGENCY. In such an event, the CONSULTANT 
would be reimbursed for actual costs in accordance with the termination for other than default clauses listed 
previously. 

The CONSULTANT shall, within 15 days, notify the AGENCY in writing, in the event of the death of any 
member, partner, or officer of the CONSULTANT or the death or change of any of the CONSULTANT’s 
supervisory and/or other key personnel assigned to the project or disaffiliation of any principally involved 
CONSULTANT employee. The CONSULTANT shall also notify the AGENCY, in writing, in the event of the 
sale or transfer of 50% or more of the beneficial ownership of the CONSULTANT within 15 days of such sale 
or transfer occurring. The CONSULTANT shall continue to be obligated to complete the SERVICES under the 
terms of this AGREEMENT unless the AGENCY chooses to terminate this AGREEMENT for convenience or 
chooses to renegotiate any term(s) of this AGREEMENT. If termination for convenience occurs, final payment 
will be made to the CONSULTANT as set forth in the second and third paragraphs of this section. 

Payment for any part of the SERVICES by the AGENCY shall not constitute a waiver by the AGENCY of any 
remedies of any type it may have against the CONSULTANT for any breach of this AGREEMENT by the 

86 of 132



Agreement Number: Abaco 2016-1

Local Agency Real Estate Professional Services Lump Sum Consultant Agreement 
Revised 4/4/2016 

Page 8 of 10 

CONSULTANT, or for failure of the CONSULTANT to perform SERVICES required of it by the AGENCY. 
Forbearance of any rights under the AGREEMENT will not constitute waiver of entitlement to exercise those 
rights with respect to any future act or omission by the CONSULTANT. 

XI. Disputes

Any disputed issue not resolved pursuant to the terms of this AGREEMENT shall be submitted in writing 
within 10 days to the Director of Public Works or AGENCY Engineer, whose decision in the matter shall be 
final and binding on the parties of this AGREEMENT; provided however, that if an action is brought challenging 
the Director of Public Works or AGENCY Engineer’s decision, that decision shall be subjected to judicial 
review. If the parties to this AGREEMENT mutually agree, disputes concerning alleged design errors will be 
conducted under the procedures found in Exhibit “J”. In the event that either party deem it necessary to institute 
legal action or proceeding to enforce any right or obligation under this AGREEMENT, this action shall be 
initiated in the Superior Court of the State of Washington, situated in the county in which the AGENCY is 
located. The parties hereto agree that all questions shall be resolved by application of Washington law and that 
the parties have the right of appeal from such decisions of the Superior Court in accordance with the laws of the 
State of Washington. The CONSULTANT hereby consents to the personal jurisdiction of the Superior Court of 
the State of Washington, situated in the county in which the AGENCY is located. 

XII. Legal Relations

The CONSULTANT, any sub-consultant, and the AGENCY shall comply with all Federal, State, and local 
laws, rules, codes, and regulations applicable to the work to be performed under this AGREEMENT. This 
AGREEMENT shall be interpreted and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington. 

The CONSULTANT shall defend, indemnify, and hold the State of Washington (STATE) and the AGENCY 
and their officers and employees harmless from all claims, demands, or suits at law or equity arising in whole or 
in part from the negligence of, or the breach of any obligation under this AGREEMENT by, the 
CONSULTANT or the CONSULTANT’S agents, employees, sub-consultants, subcontractors or vendors, of 
any tier, or any other persons for whom the CONSULTANT may be legally liable; provided that nothing herein 
shall require a CONSULTANT to defend or indemnify the STATE and the AGENCY against and hold 
harmless the STATE and AGENCY from claims, demands or suits based solely upon the negligence of, or 
breach of any obligation under this AGREEMENT by the STATE and the AGENCY, their agents, officers, 
employees, sub-consultants, subcontractors or vendors, of any tier, or any other persons for whom the STATE 
and / or the AGENCY may be legally liable; and provided further that if the claims or suits are caused by or 
result from the concurrent negligence of (a) the CONSULTANT or the CONSULTANT’S agents, employees, 
sub-consultants, subcontractors or vendors, of any tier, or any other persons for whom the CONSULTANT is 
legally liable, and (b) the STATE and / or AGENCY, their agents, officers, employees, sub-consultants, 
subcontractors and or vendors, of any tier, or any other persons for whom the STATE and / or AGENCY may 
be legally liable, the indemnity obligation shall be valid and enforceable only to the extent of the 
CONSULTANT’S negligence or the negligence of the CONSULTANT’S agents, employees, sub-consultants, 
subcontractors or vendors, of any tier, or any other persons for whom the CONSULTANT may be legally liable. 
This provision shall be included in any AGREEMENT between CONSULTANT and any sub-consultants, 
subcontractor and vendor, of any tier. 

The CONSULTANT shall also defend, indemnify, and hold the STATE and the AGENCY and their officers 
and employees harmless from all claims, demands, or suits at law or equity arising in whole or in part from the 
alleged patent or copyright infringement or other allegedly improper appropriation or use of trade secrets, 
patents, proprietary information, know-how, copyright rights or inventions by the CONSULTANT or the 
CONSULTANT’S agents, employees, sub-consultants, subcontractors or vendors, of any tier, or any other 

87 of 132



Agreement Number: Abaco 2016-1

Local Agency Real Estate Professional Services Lump Sum Consultant Agreement 
Revised 4/4/2016 

Page 9 of 10 

persons for whom the CONSULTANT may be legally liable, in performance of SERVICES under this 
AGREEMENT or arising out of any use in connection with the AGREEMENT of methods, processes, designs, 
information or other items furnished or communicated to STATE and / or AGENCY, their agents, officers and 
employees pursuant to the AGREEMENT; provided that this indemnity shall not apply to any alleged patent or 
copyright infringement or other allegedly improper appropriation or use of trade secrets, patents, proprietary 
information, know-how, copyright rights or inventions resulting from STATE’s and / or AGNECY’s, their 
agents’, officers’ and employees’ failure to comply with specific written instructions regarding use provided to 
STATE and / or AGENCY, their agents, officers and employees by the CONSULTANT, its agents, employees, 
sub-consultants, subcontractors or vendors, of any tier, or any other persons for whom the CONSULTANT may 
be legally liable. 

The CONSULTANT’S professional liability to the AGENCY, including that which may arise in reference to 
Section XIV “Insurance” of this AGREEMENT, shall be limited to the total amount of the AGREEMENT or 
one million dollars ($1,000,000.00), whichever is greater. In no case shall the CONSULTANT’S professional 
liability to third parties be limited in any way. 

The CONSULTANT specifically assumes potential liability for actions brought by the CONSULTANT’S own 
employees or its agents against the STATE and / or AGENCY and, solely for the purpose of this 
indemnification and defense, the CONSULTANT specifically waives any immunity under the STATE 
industrial insurance law, Title 51 RCW. 

XIII. Independent Contractor

The CONSULTANT shall be deemed an independent contractor for all purposes. The CONSULTANT and its 
employees and any authorized sub-consultants, or any other person of firm, shall not be deemed the employees 
of the AGENCY for any purpose. 

XIV. Insurance

The CONSULTANT shall obtain and keep in force during the terms of this AGREEMENT, or as otherwise 
required, insurance with companies or through sources approved by the STATE Insurance Commissioner 
pursuant to Title 48 RCW. 

It is the CONSULTANT’S responsibility to provide evidence of continuing coverage during the overlap periods 
of the policy and the AGREEMENT. 

The parties enter into this AGREEMENT for the sole benefit of the parties, and to the exclusion of any third 
party,  and  no  third  party  beneficiary  is  intended  or  created  by  the  execution  of  this  AGREEMENT. 

XV. Confidentiality

The AGENCY is contracting for the CONSULTANT’S independent performance of the specified SERVICES. 
Should the AGENCY employ another CONSULTANT to perform the same services, the CONSULTANT shall 
not discuss or otherwise exchange information with such other CONSULTANT. 

The project for which the SERVICES of the CONSULTANT are required may involve litigation of claims 
against or brought by the STATE and / or AGENCY.  Subject to Washington’s Public Records Act (RCW ch. 
42.17 et. al.) all information developed by the CONSULTANT and all information made available to the 
CONSULTANT and all analyses, conclusions, and/or opinions reached by the CONSULTANT shall be 

88 of 132



Agreement Number: Abaco 2016-1

Local Agency Real Estate Professional Services Lump Sum Consultant Agreement 
Revised 4/4/2016 

Page 10 of 10 

confidential as between the CONSULTANT and the AGENCY. Such information shall not be revealed by the 
CONSULTANT to any other person, organization, or entity without the express consent of the AGENCY. The 
confidentiality of such information will survive the completion of work under this AGREEMENT and/or the 
termination of this AGREEMENT. 

The SERVICES to be performed under this AGREEMENT do not include SERVICES as an expert witness; in 
the event of the commencement of litigation, SERVICES as an expert witness will be the subject of a separate 
AGREEMENT. 

XVI. Applicability of Law

This AGREEMENT shall be deemed executed in the State of Washington and the laws of the State of 
Washington shall govern the interpretation and application of its provisions. Venue for any suits between the 
CONSULTANT and the AGENCY arising from this AGREEMENT shall be brought and maintained in the 
Superior Court of Thurston County for the State of Washington. 

XVII Special Provisions 

None. 

XVIII Modification of Agreement 

This AGREEMENT, or any provision thereof, may be modified or amended only by express written 
AGREEMENT revision properly signed by all parties. 

This AGREEMENT is hereby tendered and the terms and obligations hereof shall not become binding on the 
State of Washington unless and until accepted and approved hereon in writing for the AGENCY’s authorized 
representative. 

In witness whereof, the parties hereto have executed this AGREEMENT as of the day and year shown in the 
“Execution Date” in the heading on page one (1) of this AGREEMENT. 

By: By: 

Title:  Title:  

Date  Date  

89 of 132



Scope of Work 

Exhibit A 
Scope of Work 

CIP 1127-SE 272nd Street (SR 516) between Jenkins Creek and 185th Place SE 

Project Management 
 Regular communications/coordination with City, meeting as appropriate.
 Sub consultant management/contract administration:  Sub consultant services anticipated for

activities including appraisal, appraisal reviews and other supportive services.
 Manage ROW schedule and work tasks to meet Project schedule.
 Maintain  records,  files,  documents  and  reports  in  accordance  with  City,  State  and  Federal

statutes, policy and regulations.
 Prepare/maintain ROW files including conversation logs.
 Obtain title reports; review, clear title and obtain lien release(s) as appropriate.
 Work with City staff, City Attorney and other entities as appropriate.

Acquisition 
 Obtain appraisals/review/AOS. Appraisers selected from WSDOT approved appraisal list.
 Contact property owners, provide introduction, Project info, answer questions, identify and

discuss issues/concerns.
 Prepare negotiation packages; offer letters and schedule appointments.
 Present  offers,  conduct  acquisition  negotiations;  meet  with  owners,  no  less  than  three  (3)

meaningful attempts to contact; providing reasonable time to consider offer.
 Prepare purchase/sale agreements, appropriate escrow/closing docs.
 Advise City of status of negotiations, notify when impasse is likely.
 Establish/manage escrow, obtain approvals, funding docs. Confirm/verify closing.

Project Certification and Close-out 
 Provide files, documents and records to City and WSDOT.
 Provide WSDOT Local Agency ROW Coordinator the opportunity to review ROW files prior to

offers being made to affected property owners.
 Participate in and support ROW certification activities.
 Close-out ROW files.
 Provide close-out summary.
 Data/file maintenance.
 Retention of files for no less than three (3) years.
 

Documents to be Furnished by Consultant 
 Project/Parcel Files
 Diary of Activity Log/Negotiators Statement
 Title Reports, Lien release and conveyance forms
 Purchase and Sale documents
 Administrative Offer Summaries, Appraisals and Appraisal Reviews
 Regular status reports
 Invoices and supporting accounting documentation

Agreement Number: Abaco 2016-1 

WSDOT Form 140-089 EF Exhibit A Page 1 of 2 
Revised 10/30/2014 

90 of 132



Exhibit A 
Scope of Work 

Right-of-Way Parcels 

Project ID Tax Parcel # Property Owner 
1 3622059184 CITY OF KENT 
2 2522059131 MULTICARE HEALTH SYSTEM 

3 & 5 
3122069021, 
3122069020 YOU OLD POOP LLC 

4 3122069053 HEDIN RON JR 
6 3122069023 RODRIGUEZ ERNEST J 
7 3122069048 ALQUIST CHRIS 
8 3122069024 ISHAM DARREL L 
9 3122069022 BELL JANICE L 
10 3122069045 DONITA ED -N- LEARNED FAMILY TRUST 

11 & 12 
3122069050, 
3122069037 BEACH HOUSE INVESTMENTS LLC 

13 3122069040 LATIMER STEVEN M & ANNE 

14 3122069043 GREEN BILL 

15 & 16 
3122069031, 
3122069065 LOBBAN HENRY F 

17 3022069053 KWON SON KU 

18 & 19 
3122069005, 
3122069037 PEACE LUTHERAN CHURCH 

20 3022069029 KENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 415 
No relocation of individuals or businesses is anticipated however if it is determined that relocation 
services are appropriate, this work may be considered as additional work. 

Agreement Number: Abaco 2016-1 

WSDOT Form 140-089 EF Exhibit A Page 2 of 2 
Revised 10/30/2014 

91 of 132



WSDOT Form 140-089 EF Exhibit B 
Revised 10/30/2014 

Page 1 of 1 

Exhibit B 
DBE Participation 

There is no Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) participation anticipated. 

Agreement Number: Abaco 2016-1 

92 of 132



 

Exhibit D 
Prime Consultant Cost Computations 

 
 

 
 

RIGHT OF WAY ACQUISITION SERVICES 
 

Project Management and Acquisition Services 

Project Management and Administration $ 95,480 
 

ROW Acquisition $ 116,000 
Sub Total $ 211,480 

Sub Consultant Services  

Appraisals/AOS $ 65,400 
Appraisal Review $ 17,150 
Sub Total $ 82,550 

Expenses $ 3,000 

TOTAL MAXIMUM AMOUNT PAYABLE $ 297,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agreement Number: Abaco 2016-1 
 

 

WSDOT Form 140-089 EF Exhibit D Page 1 of 1 
Revised 10/30/2014 

93 of 132



WSDOT Form 140-089 EF Exhibit E 
Revised 10/30/2014 

Page 1 of 1  

Exhibit E 
Sub-consultant Cost Computations 

 
 

There isn’t any sub-consultant participation at this time. The CONSULTANT shall not sub-contract for 
the performance of any work under this AGREEMENT without prior written permission of the AGENCY. 
Refer to section VI “Sub-Contracting” of this AGREEMENT. 

 
 
 

SUB CONSULTANT SERVICES 
 

Appraisals/AOS $ 65,000 
Appraisal Review $  17,000 

TOTAL SUB CONSULTANT SERVICES $ 82,000 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agreement Number: Abaco 2016-1 

94 of 132



WSDOT Form 140-089 EF Exhibit F 
Revised 10/30/2014 

Page 1 of 1 

Exhibit F 
Title VI Assurances 

During the performance of this AGREEMENT, the CONSULTANT, for itself, its assignees, and successors 
in interest agrees as follows: 

1. Compliance with Regulations: The CONSULTANT shall comply with the Regulations relative to non-
discrimination in federally assisted programs of the AGENCY, Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations,
Part 21, as they may be amended from time to time (hereinafter referred to as the “REGULATIONS”),
which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this AGREEMENT.

2. Non-discrimination: The CONSULTANT, with regard to the work performed during this AGREEMENT,
shall not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, sex, or national origin in the selection and retention
of sub-consultants, including procurement of materials and leases of equipment. The CONSULTANT
shall not participate either directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of the
REGULATIONS, including employment practices when this AGREEMENT covers a program set forth
in Appendix B of the REGULATIONS.

3. Solicitations for Sub-consultants, Including Procurement of Materials and Equipment: In all solicitations
either by competitive bidding or negotiations made by the CONSULTANT for work to be performed
under a sub-contract, including procurement of materials or leases of equipment, each potential sub-
consultant or supplier shall be notified by the CONSULTANT of the CONSULTANT’s obligations under
this AGREEMENT and the REGULATIONS relative to non-discrimination on the grounds of race, color,
sex, or national origin.

4. Information and Reports: The CONSULTANT shall provide all information and reports required by the
REGULATIONS or directives issued pursuant thereto, and shall permit access to its books, records,
accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined by the AGENCY, the
STATE, or the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such
REGULATIONS, orders and instructions. Where any information required of a CONSULTANT is in the
exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish this information, the CONSULTANT shall
so certify to the AGENCY, the STATE, or the FHWA as appropriate, and shall set forth what efforts it has
made to obtain the information.

5. Sanctions for Non-compliance: In the event of the CONSULTANT’s non-compliance with the non-
discrimination provisions of this AGREEMENT, the AGENCY shall impose such AGREEMENT sanctions
as it, the STATE, or the FHWA may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to:
• Withholding of payments to the CONSULTANT under this AGREEMENT until the CONSULTANT

complies, and/or;
• Cancellation, termination, or suspension of this AGREEMENT, in whole or in part.

6. Incorporation of Provisions: The CONSULTANT shall include the provisions of paragraphs (1) through
(5) in every subcontract, including procurement of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the
REGULATIONS, or directives issued pursuant thereto. The CONSULTANT shall take such action with
respect to any sub-consultant or procurement as the STATE, the AGENCY, or FHWA may direct as a means
of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for non-compliance.

Provided, however, that in the event a CONSULTANT becomes involved in, or is threatened with, 
litigation with a sub-consultant or supplier as a result of such direction, the CONSULTANT may request 
the AGENCY enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the STATE and/or the AGENCY and, in 
addition, the CONSULTANT may request the United States enter into such litigation to protect the interests 
of the United States. Agreement Number: Abaco 2016-1 

95 of 132



WSDOT Form 140-089 EF Exhibit G 
Revised 10/30/2014 

Page 1 of 1 

Exhibit G 
Certification Documents 

Exhibit G-1(a) Certification of Consultant 

Exhibit G-1(b) Certification of City of Covington, Washington 

Exhibit G-2 Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters - 
Primary Covered Transactions 

Exhibit G-3 Certification Regarding the Restrictions of the Use of Federal Funds for Lobbying 

Agreement Number: Abaco 2016-1 

96 of 132



WSDOT Form 140-089 EF Exhibit G 
Revised 10/30/2014 

Page 1 of 1  

Exhibit G-1(a) Certification of Consultant 
I hereby certify that I am the President and duly authorized representative of Abaco Pacific, Inc., whose address 
is 13468 456th Place SE, North Bend, WA 98045 and that neither the above firm nor I have: 

a) Employed or retained for a commission, percentage, brokerage, contingent fee, or other consideration, 
any firm or person (other than a bona fide employee working solely for me or the above CONSULTANT) 
to solicit or secure this AGREEMENT; 

b) Agreed, as an express or implied condition for obtaining this contract, to employ or retain the services of 
any firm or person in connection with carrying out this AGREEMENT; or 

c) Paid, or agreed to pay, to any firm, organization or person (other than a bona fide employee working solely 
for me or the above CONSULTANT) any fee, contribution, donation, or consideration of any kind for, or in 
connection with, procuring or carrying out this AGREEMENT; except as hereby expressly stated (if any); 

I acknowledge that this certificate is to be furnished to the City of Covington, Washington State Department of 
Transportation and the Federal Highway Administration, U.S. Department of Transportation in connection with this 
AGREEMENT involving participation of Federal-aid highway funds, and is subject to applicable State and Federal 
laws, both criminal and civil. 

 
 

Abaco Pacific, Inc. 
 

Consultant (Firm Name) 
 
 
 
 

  

Signature (Authorized Official of Consultant) Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agreement Number: Abaco 2016-1 

97 of 132



WSDOT Form 140-089 EF Exhibit G 
Revised 10/30/2014 

Page 1 of 1  

Exhibit G-1(b) Certification of City of Covington, Washington 
I hereby certify that I am the: City Official 

of the City of Covington, King County, State of Washington and Abaco Pacific, Inc. or its representative has not 
been required, directly or indirectly as an express or implied condition in connection with obtaining or carrying out 
this AGREEMENT to: 

a) Employ or retain, or agree to employ to retain, any firm or person; or 

b) Pay, or agree to pay, to any firm, person, or organization, any fee, contribution, donation, or consideration 
of any kind; except as hereby expressly stated (if any): 

I acknowledge that this certificate is to be furnished to the Washington State Department of Transportation 
and the Federal Highway Administration, U.S. Department of Transportation, in connection with this 
AGREEMENT involving participation of Federal-aid highway funds, and is subject to applicable State and 
Federal laws, both criminal and civil. 

 
 
 
 
 

  

Signature Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agreement Number: Abaco 2016-1  

98 of 132



Agreement Number: Abaco 2016-1 
WSDOT Form 140-089 EF Exhibit G 

Revised 10/30/2014 
Page 1 of 1 

Exhibit G-2 Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other 
Responsibility Matters - Primary Covered Transactions 

I. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its principals:

A. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

B. Have not within a three (3) year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment
rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining,
attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, or local) transaction or contract under
a public transaction; violation of Federal or State anti-trust statues or commission of embezzlement,
theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving
stolen property;

C. Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1)(b)
of this certification; and

D. Have not within a three (3) year period preceding this application / proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State and local) terminated for cause or default.

II. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification,
such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

 Abaco Pacific, Inc. 
Consultant (Firm Name) 

Signature (Authorized Official of Consultant) Date 

99 of 132



Agreement Number: Abaco 2016-1 
WSDOT Form 140-089 EF Exhibit G 

Revised 10/30/2014 
Page 1 of 1 

Exhibit G-3 Certification Regarding the Restrictions of the Use of Federal Funds 
for Lobbying 
The prospective participant certifies, by signing and submitting this bid or proposal, to the best of his or her 
knowledge and belief, that: 

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federal agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or any employee of a Member of Congress in connection
with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan,
the entering into of any cooperative AGREEMENT, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment,
or modification of Federal contract, grant, loan or cooperative AGREEMENT.

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federal agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan or cooperative AGREEMENT, the undersigned shall complete and submit
Standard Form - LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into
this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000.00, and not more than $100,000.00,
for each such failure.

The prospective participant also agrees by submitting his or her bid or proposal that he or she shall require
that the language of this certification be included in all lower tier sub-contracts, which exceed $100,000,
and that all such sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

Abaco Pacific, Inc. 
Consultant (Firm Name) 

Signature (Authorized Official of Consultant) Date 

100 of 132



WSDOT Form 140-089 EF Exhibit I 
Revised 10/30/2014 

Page 1 of 2  

Exhibit I 
Alleged Consultant Design Error Procedures 

 
 

The purpose of this exhibit is to establish a procedure to determine if a consultant’s alleged design error is of a 
nature that exceeds the accepted standard of care. In addition, it will establish a uniform method for the resolution 
and/or cost recovery procedures in those instances where the agency believes it has suffered some material damage 
due to the alleged error by the consultant. 

Step 1 Potential Consultant Design Error(s) is Identified by Agency’s Project Manager 
At the first indication of potential consultant design error(s), the first step in the process is for the Agency’s 
project manager to notify the Director of Public Works or Agency Engineer regarding the potential design 
error(s). For federally funded projects, the Region Local Programs Engineer should be informed and 
involved in these procedures. (Note: The Director of Public Works or Agency Engineer may appoint an 
agency staff person other than the project manager, who has not been as directly involved in the project, 
to be responsible for the remaining steps in these procedures.) 

Step 2 Project Manager Documents the Alleged Consultant Design Error(s) 
After discussion of the alleged design error(s) and the magnitude of the alleged error(s), and with the 
Director of Public Works or Agency Engineer’s concurrence, the project manager obtains more detailed 
documentation than is normally required on the project. Examples include: all decisions and descriptions 
of work; photographs, records of labor, materials and equipment. 

Step 3 Contact the Consultant Regarding the Alleged Design Error(s) 
If it is determined that there is a need to proceed further, the next step in the process is for the project 
manager to contact the consultant regarding the alleged design error(s) and the magnitude of the alleged 
error(s). The project manager and other appropriate agency staff should represent the agency and the 
consultant should be represented by their project manager and any personnel (including sub-consultants) 
deemed appropriate for the alleged design error(s) issue. 

Step 4 Attempt to Resolve Alleged Design Error with Consultant 
After the meeting(s) with the consultant have been completed regarding the consultant’s alleged design 
error(s), there are three possible scenarios: 

• It is determined via mutual agreement that there is not a consultant design error(s). If this is the case, 
then the process will not proceed beyond this point. 

• It is determined via mutual agreement that a consultant design error(s) occurred. If this is the case, 
then the Director of Public Works or Agency Engineer, or their representatives, negotiate a settlement 
with the consultant. The settlement would be paid to the agency or the amount would be reduced from 
the consultant’s agreement with the agency for the services on the project in which the design error 
took place. The agency is to provide LP, through the Region Local Programs Engineer, a summary 
of the settlement for review and to make adjustments, if any, as to how the settlement affects federal 
reimbursements. No further action is required. 

• There is not a mutual agreement regarding the alleged consultant design error(s). The consultant may 
request that the alleged design error(s) issue be forwarded to the Director of Public Works or Agency 
Engineer for review. If the Director of Public Works or Agency Engineer, after review with their legal 
counsel, is not able to reach mutual agreement with the consultant, proceed to Step 5. 

 
 
 
 

Agreement Number: 

101 of 132



WSDOT Form 140-089 EF Exhibit I 
Revised 10/30/2014 

Page 2 of 2  

Step 5 Forward Documents to Local Programs 
For federally funded projects all available information, including costs, should be forwarded through the 
Region Local Programs Engineer to LP for their review and consultation with the FHWA. LP will meet 
with representatives of the agency and the consultant to review the alleged design error(s), and attempt 
to find a resolution to the issue. If necessary, LP will request assistance from the Attorney General’s Office 
for legal interpretation. LP will also identify how the alleged error(s) affects eligibility of project costs 
for federal reimbursement. 

• If mutual agreement is reached, the agency and consultant adjust the scope of work and costs 
to reflect the agreed upon resolution. LP, in consultation with FHWA, will identify the amount 
of federal participation in the agreed upon resolution of the issue. 

• If mutual agreement is not reached, the agency and consultant may seek settlement by arbitration 
or by litigation. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agreement Number: Abaco 2016-1 

102 of 132



WSDOT Form 140-089 EF Exhibit J 
Revised 10/30/2014 

Page 1 of 2 

Exhibit J 
Consultant Claim Procedures 

The purpose of this exhibit is to describe a procedure regarding claim(s) on a consultant agreement. The following 
procedures should only be utilized on consultant claims greater than $1,000. If the consultant’s claim(s) are a total 
of $1,000 or less, it would not be cost effective to proceed through the outlined steps. It is suggested that the 
Director of Public Works or Agency Engineer negotiate a fair and reasonable price for the consultant’s claim(s) 
that total $1,000 or less. 

This exhibit will outline the procedures to be followed by the consultant and the agency to consider a potential 
claim by the consultant. 

Step 1 Consultant Files a Claim with the Agency Project Manager 

If the consultant determines that they were requested to perform additional services that were outside 
of the agreement’s scope of work, they may be entitled to a claim. The first step that must be completed 
is the request for consideration of the claim to the Agency’s project manager. 

The consultant’s claim must outline the following: 

• Summation of hours by classification for each firm that is included in the claim;

• Any correspondence that directed the consultant to perform the additional work;

• Timeframe of the additional work that was outside of the project scope;

• Summary of direct labor dollars, overhead costs, profit and reimbursable costs associated with
the additional work; and

• Explanation as to why the consultant believes the additional work was outside of the agreement
scope of work.

Step 2 Review by Agency Personnel Regarding the Consultant’s Claim for Additional Compensation 

After the consultant has completed step 1, the next step in the process is to forward the request to the 
Agency’s project manager. The project manager will review the consultant’s claim and will met with the 
Director of Public Works or Agency Engineer to determine if the Agency agrees with the claim. If the 
FHWA is participating in the project’s funding, forward a copy of the consultant’s claim and the Agency’s 
recommendation for federal participation in the claim to the WSDOT Local Programs through the Region 
Local Programs Engineer. If the claim is not eligible for federal participation, payment will need to be from 
agency funds. 

If the Agency project manager, Director of Public Works or Agency Engineer, WSDOT Local Programs 
(if applicable), and FHWA (if applicable) agree with the consultant’s claim, send a request memo, including 
backup documentation to the consultant to either supplement the agreement, or create a new agreement 
for the claim. After the request has been approved, the Agency shall write the supplement and/or new 
agreement and pay the consultant the amount of the claim. Inform the consultant that the final payment for 
the agreement is subject to audit. No further action in needed regarding the claim procedures. 

If the Agency does not agree with the consultant’s claim, proceed to step 3 of the procedures. 

Agreement Number: Abaco 2016-1 

103 of 132



WSDOT Form 140-089 EF Exhibit J 
Revised 10/30/2014 

Page 2 of 2 

Step 3 Preparation of Support Documentation Regarding Consultant’s Claim(s) 

If the Agency does not agree with the consultant’s claim, the project manager shall prepare a summary 
for the Director of Public Works or Agency Engineer that included the following: 

• Copy of information supplied by the consultant regarding the claim;

• Agency’s summation of hours by classification for each firm that should be included in the claim;

• Any correspondence that directed the consultant to perform the additional work;

• Agency’s summary of direct labor dollars, overhead costs, profit and reimbursable costs associated
with the additional work;

• Explanation regarding those areas in which the Agency does/does not agree with the consultant’s
claim(s);

• Explanation to describe what has been instituted to preclude future consultant claim(s); and

• Recommendations to resolve the claim.

Step 4 Director of Public Works or Agency Engineer Reviews Consultant Claim and Agency Documentation 

The Director of Public Works or Agency Engineer shall review and administratively approve or disapprove 
the claim, or portions thereof, which may include getting Agency Council or Commission approval (as 
appropriate to agency dispute resolution procedures). If the project involves federal participation, obtain 
concurrence from WSDOT Local Programs and FHWA regarding final settlement of the claim. If the claim 
is not eligible for federal participation, payment will need to be from agency funds. 

Step 5 Informing Consultant of Decision Regarding the Claim 

The Director of Public Works or Agency Engineer shall notify (in writing) the consultant of their final 
decision regarding the consultant’s claim(s). Include the final dollar amount of the accepted claim(s) 
and rationale utilized for the decision. 

Step 6 Preparation of Supplement or New Agreement for the Consultant’s Claim(s) 

The agency shall write the supplement and/or new agreement and pay the consultant the amount 
of the claim. Inform the consultant that the final payment for the agreement is subject to audit. 

Agreement Number: Abaco 2016-1 

104 of 132



Consent Agenda Item C-7  
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: September 13, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  CONSIDER RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF THE PORT OF SEATTLE’S 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PARTNERSHIP PROGRAM  
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Regan Bolli, City Manager 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Proposed Resolution 
2. Port of Seattle Economic Development Partnership Program 2016 Funding Application 

 
PREPARED BY:   
Karla Slate, Communications and Marketing Manager 
 
EXPLANATION: 
The City of Covington is one of 38 King County cities eligible to receive grant funds from the 
Port of Seattle’s new Economic Development Partnership Program. Cities may submit economic 
development related projects for consideration and, if approved, would be granted matching 
funds for the project. The City of Covington has submitted the website redesign project and 
photography/videography services to advance the economic development section of our website 
and use in marketing materials.    
 
ALTERNATIVES: 

1) Modify the resolution. 
2) Do not approve a resolution. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
$3,700 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:        Ordinance     X    Resolution         Motion           Other 
 

Councilmember __________ moves, Councilmember ______________ 
seconds, to adopt a resolution stating the city council’s support and 
authorization for matching funds of $3,700 for the Port of Seattle’s 2016 
Economic Development Partnership Program, in substantial form as that 
presented. 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager 

105 of 132



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-16 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, 
STATING THE CITY COUNCIL’S SUPPORT FOR 
PARTICIPATION IN THE PORT OF SEATTLE’S 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PARTNERSHIP PROGRAM. 

WHEREAS, economic development, specifically business recruitment and attraction, is a 
priority of the City of Covington (the “City”) as it improves the quality of life of our residents, 
attracts new residents, and creates new jobs, and 

WHEREAS, the Port of Seattle has developed an economic development partnership 
program to help cities implement economic development programs and impactful initiatives that 
support the regional economy; and 

WHEREAS, the City has submitted an application to improve the city’s website design 
and utilize video and photography services for economic development purposes; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council agrees with the Port of Seattle that effective economic 
development partnerships can stimulate region-wide prosperity; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, 
WASHINGTON HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  The City Council hereby supports the 2016 Economic Development 
Partnership Program initiated by the Port of Seattle. 

Section 1.  The City Council hereby authorizes the use of matching funds from the 
General Fund in the amount of $3,700 to implement the city’s economic development initiative, 
if approved, for the Port of Seattle’s 2016 Economic Development Partnership Program. 

ADOPTED in open and regular session on this 13th day of September, 2016, and signed 
in authentication thereof.  

_____________________________________ 
       JEFF WAGNER, MAYOR 

ATTESTED: 

_____________________________________ 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 

ATTACHMENT 1

106 of 132



ATTACHMENT 2

107 of 132



108 of 132



109 of 132



110 of 132



Agenda Item 1 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  September 13, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:   CONSIDER APPOINTMENT TO OPENING ON THE PLANNING 

COMMISSION  
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
              
ATTACHMENTS:  See Interview Schedule and Applications provided separately. 

 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk  
 
EXPLANATION: 
Council interviewed three applicants for one opening on the Planning Commission. 
   
Planning Commission – Seven Members: 

• One replacement position open for an adult residing inside city limits. 
 
 Name of Applicant      Resides  
  Jonathan Ingram     Resides in Covington 
  Nichole Pennington     Resides in Covington 
  Jennifer Harjehausen     Resides in Covington 
 
NOTE:  Ordinance No. 25-01 “Membership in the Planning Commission shall be limited to 
residents within the City; provided, however, at any given time the commission may consist of a 
maximum of two members who reside outside the City, but within a three-mile radius of the City 
limits.  No member shall serve longer than two consecutive terms.”   
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Not appoint at this time and direct staff to continue to advertise for additional applicants to be 
considered for the open position.   
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  ____ Ordinance            Resolution       X     Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ______________ moves, Councilmember ________________ 
seconds, to appoint ________________ to fill an open replacement position on 
the Planning Commission for an applicant residing inside Covington city limits 
with a term expiring August 31, 2017. 
 

REVIEWED BY: City Manager 
 Community Development Director 
  

111 of 132



Agenda Item 2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: September 13, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:   CONSIDER APPOINTMENT TO THE HUMAN SERVICES COMMISSION  
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Victoria Throm, Personnel & Sr. Human Services Planner 
                
ATTACHMENTS:  See Interview Schedule and Applications provided separately. 

 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk  
 
EXPLANATION:   
Council interviewed two applicants for one opening on the Human Services Commission  
 
Human Services Commission – Seven Members (Two of which must be Youth): 

• One replacement position open for an adult residing inside the city limits or within a three-
mile radius. 

 
Name of Applicant                          Resides or Works 

  
 Nichole Pennington Resides in Covington 
 Chris Dupuis Resides in Covington 
  
 
NOTE: Ordinance Nos. 10-13, 04-05 § 1, and 22-02 § 1) Membership, terms, residence 
requirement:  “Three members shall be adults residing or working within the City of Covington, 
two shall be adults residing inside or outside of the City of Covington but within a three-mile 
radius of the City limits and two shall be youth members between the ages of 14 and 18 years at 
the start of their terms residing in or within a three-mile radius of the City of Covington. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Not appoint at this time and direct staff to continue to advertise for additional applicants to be 
considered for the position. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  ____ Ordinance            Resolution       X     Motions            Other  

 
Councilmember ______________ moves, Councilmember ________________ 
seconds, to appoint _________________ to fill replacement adult Position No. 3 
on the Human Services Commission with a term expiring March 31, 2019. 
 

REVIEWED BY: City Manager 
 Personnel & Sr. Human Services Planner 
  
 

112 of 132



Agenda Item 3  
 Covington City Council  
 Date: September 13, 2016  
 
SUBJECT:  ADOPT A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A CITY OF COVINGTON YOUTH 

CITY COUNCIL 
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Regan Bolli, City Manager 
  
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. Proposed Resolution Establishing a City of Covington Youth City Council 
 
PREPARED BY:  Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant 
 
EXPLANATION: 
At their 2016 Strategic Planning Summit the city council endorsed the creation of a youth city 
council.  The council expressed a desire to cultivate and nurture future leaders; expand the city’s 
connections to the community; increase the number of volunteers who help the city achieve its 
goals; obtain community input on key issues facing the city; and ensure the work of the youth 
council is meaningful.   
 
The council held a Listening Session at Kentwood High School on May 16, 2016, where the 
council interacted with students to learn what they would like to see in the Town Center.  The 
majority of students who attended the Listening Session also expressed interest in serving on a 
youth city council and signed up to receive more information. 
 
The attached proposed resolution establishes a Covington Youth City Council (“YCC” or “Youth 
Council”) and outlines the purpose, appointment of adult leaders, selection and appointment of 
YCC members, and the organization and rules of the YCC. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
1. Modify the resolution. 
2. Not adopt the resolution. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
Minor costs for meeting materials such as three ring binders, and incidentals.  These are routine 
costs that would be covered by the existing city budget.  The appointed adult leaders are intended 
to perform much of the oversight of the YCC, keeping staff time at a minimum.  
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance    X   Resolution        Motion         Other 
 

Councilmember _______________ moves, Councilmember 
_______________ Seconds, to adopt a resolution, in substantial 
form as that attached, establishing a City of Covington Youth 
City Council. 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney 

113 of 132



RESOLUTION NO.  2016-17 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, 
ESTABLISHING A YOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

WHEREAS, it is important and beneficial to all residents of the City of Covington (the 
“City”) to foster involvement of the community’s youth in the process of government and the 
ideals of public service; and 

WHEREAS, it is desirable to expand the City’s connections to the community; and 

WHEREAS, it is desirable to increase the number of volunteers who help the City achieve 
its goals; and 

WHEREAS, it is important to obtain community input on key issues facing the City; 

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, 
WASHINGTON, hereby resolves as follows: 

Section 1. Covington Youth City Council Established. The Covington City Council 
hereby establishes the Covington Youth City Council, which shall be referred to as the “Youth 
Council”. The city manager shall designate appropriate city staff to advise and provide 
administrative assistance to the Youth Council leaders and members. 

Section 2. Purpose. The purpose of the Youth Council shall be as follows: 

2.1. Involve youth in local government. 

2.2. Increase volunteerism among youth in civic affairs. 

2.3. Increase communication with youth in the Covington community. 

2.4. Involve youth in planning youth activities for the Covington community. 

2.5. Serve as an advisory body to the City Council on matters dealing with youth in the 
Covington community. 

Section 3. Adult Leader Positions. The Youth Council shall be guided and mentored by 
at least two (2) non-voting adult leaders. The adult leader positions shall be appointed and fulfilled 
pursuant to the following: 

3.1. Recommendations to Council. Upon establishment of the Youth Council, and upon 
a vacancy of either adult leader position thereafter, the mayor, mayor pro tem, and 
city manager shall collectively recommend to the City Council a minimum of two (2) 
adults for appointment to an adult leader position for the Youth Council. 

3.2. Appointment; Term. The City Council, by majority vote, shall appoint two (2) 
adult leaders to the Youth Council. Upon establishment of the Youth Council, both 
adult leader positions shall be initially appointed for a two-year term. Thereafter, 

ATTACHMENT 1

114 of 132



upon the expiration or vacancy of an adult position, the City Council, by majority
vote, shall appoint individuals to the adult leader positions in staggered-length terms 
to be determined by the City Council (e.g. one adult leader position assigned to a 
one-year term and the other adult leader position assigned to a two- year term; or, 
one adult leader position assigned to a two-year term and the other adult leader 
position assigned to a three-year term, etc.).  

3.3. Removal. The City Council may remove an adult leader from their position at any 
time without reason upon a majority vote of the council.  

Section 4. Youth Council Members. Voting members of the Youth Council shall be appointed 
and serve pursuant to the following: 

4.1. Selection and Appointment. The appointed adult leaders shall recruit and select up 
to twenty (20) youth to present to the city council for appointment to the Youth 
Council (the “recommended roster”). The City Council shall appoint members 
through approval, by majority vote, of the recommended roster, as it may be 
amended by the City Council. 

4.2. Member Criteria. Youth Council members shall be between the ages of fifteen (15) 
and eighteen (18) at the time of selection who attend school in the Kent or Tahoma 
school districts or reside in the City of Covington. 

4.3. Term. Selected Youth Council members shall each serve for a term of one (1) year. 

4.4. Removal. Upon a joint recommendation of the adult leaders, or by motion of the 
council, the City Council, by majority vote, may remove a member of the Youth 
Council at any time without reason.  

Section 5. Organization and Rules.  The Youth Council shall adopt such rules for governing its 
procedures as it deems necessary or advisable and shall keep a record of its proceedings, which 
record shall be a public record. The Youth Council shall hold regular meetings at least once 
every two (2) months during the months school is in session and, pursuant to Section 8.0 of the 
Covington City Council Policies and Procedures, shall comply with the requirements of the Open 
Public Meetings Act (RCW 42.30). 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Covington, Washington, in open and regular 
session this 13th day of September, 2016, and signed in authentication thereof. 

_____________________________________ 
       JEFF WAGNER, MAYOR 

ATTESTED: 

_____________________________________ 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_____________________________________ 
Sara Springer, City Attorney 

115 of 132



Agenda Item 4  
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: September 13, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  2016 SECOND QUARTER FINANCIAL REPORTS  
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S):   

1. 2016 Second Quarter Report 
2. Quarterly Performance Reports by Fund 
3. Major Revenue Comparison   
4. Current Investment Listing 

 
PREPARED BY:   
Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
EXPLANATION: 
It is the policy of the City and a requirement of state law (RCW 35A.34.240) to provide financial 
reports to the governing body on a quarterly basis.  
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
N/A 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
None. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:           Ordinance            Resolution  _____Motion   ___X__Other 
 

ASK QUESTIONS OF STAFF  
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager 

116 of 132



ATTACHMENT 1

117 of 132



118 of 132



119 of 132



120 of 132



121 of 132



122 of 132



123 of 132



ATTACHMENT 2

124 of 132



125 of 132



126 of 132



127 of 132



ATTACHMENT 3

128 of 132



ATTACHMENT 4

129 of 132



  
Covington City Council Meeting 
           Date:  September 13, 2016 

 
 

DISCUSSION OF  
FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 

 
 

 
7:00 p.m. Tuesday, September 27, 2016 Regular Meeting 

 
 

 (Draft Agenda Attached) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

130 of 132



 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
 
 
Tuesday, September 27, 2016                                                                                             City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                                            16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

• National Community Planning Month Proclamation – October 2016 
• Domestic Violence Action Month Proclamation – October 2016 
• Presentation by Kent School District re Ballot Measure – 10 minutes 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, not the audience 
or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes per speaker.  Speakers may request 
additional time on a future agenda as time allows. * 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA  
C-1. Minutes:  August 9, 2016 Regular Meeting and September 9, 2016 Special & Regular Meeting 

(Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Award Contract for SE 263rd Place Drainage Improvement Project (CIP _____) (Vondran) 
C-4. Approve Revised Covington Community Park Phase 2 Design and Construction Grant Funding 

Project Agreement (Newton) 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS 
• Human Services Chair Leslie Hamada:  August 11 and September 8 meetings. 
• Parks & Recreation Chair Laura Morrissey:  August 17 Parks Tour and September 21 meeting. 
• Arts Chair Lesli Cohan:  August 11 and September 8 meetings. 
• Planning:  Chair Bill Judd:  September 1 and 15 meetings. 
• Economic Development Council Co-Chair/Member:  July 28, August 25, and Sept. 22 meetings.  

 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Discuss and Provide Direction for King County Community Van Program (Lyons) 
2. Review Parks and Recreation Priorities Advisory Committee Report (Newton) 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS 
 

Draft 
as of 09/08/16 

 

131 of 132

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/


PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – if needed 
 
ADJOURN 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400). 
 

132 of 132


	09-13-2016 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday, September 13, 2016                                                                                            City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	Consent C-1 Green Sheet 09-13-2016 Green Sheet Minutes Approval
	Consent Agenda Item C-1

	Consent C-1 Attachment 1 08.09.2016 Special Joint Mtg w-HS Commission
	Consent C-2 Green Sheet 09-13-2016 Voucher Green Sheet
	Consent Agenda Item C-2

	Consent C-2 Attachments
	Consent C-3 Green Sheet 09-13-16 Project Acceptance of Gerry Crick Skate Park Equipment Installationv2
	Consent Agenda Item C-3

	Consent C-3 Attachment 1 Post Installation Inspection
	Consent C-3 Attachment 2 Draft Notice of Completion
	Consent C-3 Attachment 3 Gerry Crick Skate Park 2016
	Consent C-4 Green Sheet 09-13-16 Best Parking Lot Cleaning - Amendment 2
	Consent C-4 Attachment 1 - CAG 1316-14
	Consent C-4 Attachment 2 - CAG 1316-14 Amendment No. 1
	Consent C-4 Attachment 3 - CAG 1316-14 Amendment No. 2
	CITY OF COVINGTON BEST PARKING LOT CLEANING
	By: Regan Bolli By: ______________________________
	Date: ______________________________ Date: ______________________________

	Consent C-5 Green Sheet 09-13-16 CIP 1127 WSDOT Supplement #3 Blue Sheet
	Consent Agenda Item C-5

	Consent C-5 Attachment 1 09-13-16 WSDOT Supplement 3 - ATTACHMENT 1
	Consent C-6 Gree Sheet 09-13-16 Abaco Pacific Blue Sheet
	Consent C-6 Attachment 1 Local Agency Real Estate Professional Services Lump Sum Consultant Agreement
	Local Agency Real Estate Professional Services Lump Sum Consultant Agreement
	Index of Exhibits
	Scope of Work
	Documents to be Furnished by Consultant


	Exhibit A Scope of Work
	Exhibit B DBE Participation
	Exhibit D Prime Consultant Cost Computations
	Exhibit E Sub-consultant Cost Computations
	Exhibit F Title VI Assurances
	Exhibit G Certification Documents
	Exhibit G-1(a) Certification of Consultant
	Exhibit G-1(b) Certification of City of Covington, Washington
	Exhibit G-2 Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters - Primary Covered Transactions
	Exhibit G-3 Certification Regarding the Restrictions of the Use of Federal Funds for Lobbying

	Exhibit I Alleged Consultant Design Error Procedures
	Step 1 Potential Consultant Design Error(s) is Identified by Agency’s Project Manager
	Step 2 Project Manager Documents the Alleged Consultant Design Error(s)
	Step 3 Contact the Consultant Regarding the Alleged Design Error(s)
	Step 4 Attempt to Resolve Alleged Design Error with Consultant
	Step 5 Forward Documents to Local Programs

	Exhibit J
	Step 1 Consultant Files a Claim with the Agency Project Manager
	Step 2 Review by Agency Personnel Regarding the Consultant’s Claim for Additional Compensation
	Step 3 Preparation of Support Documentation Regarding Consultant’s Claim(s)
	Step 4 Director of Public Works or Agency Engineer Reviews Consultant Claim and Agency Documentation
	Step 5 Informing Consultant of Decision Regarding the Claim
	Step 6 Preparation of Supplement or New Agreement for the Consultant’s Claim(s)


	Consent C-7 Green Sheet PortofSeattleEDResoBlueSheet09-13-16
	Consent C-7 Attachment 1 PortofSeattleEDProgramResolution
	Consent C-7 Attachment 2
	Item 1 Blue Sheet 09-13-2016 Consider Appointments to Opening on PC
	Agenda Item 1

	Item 2 Blue Sheet 09-13-2016 Blue Sheet Appointments to Human Services Commission
	Agenda Item 2

	Item 3 Blue Sheet_Resolution for YCC_13SEPT2016MTG_SBSEDIT
	Agenda Item 3

	Item 3 Attachment 1 RES_YCC_13SEPT2016MTG_SBSEDIT_CLEAN
	Item 4 Blue Sheet 9_13_16 2nd Qtr Report
	Agenda Item 4

	Item 4 Attachment 1-4
	Future Agenda Cover Sheet
	09-27-2016 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday, September 27, 2016                                                                                             City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	PUBLIC COMMUNICATION


	Executed Date: April 5, 2012
	Name: SR 516  ; Jenkins Creek to 185th Place SE
	Length: 0.50 Miles
	Termini:  Jenkins Creek Crossing to 185th Place SE
	No Change: Yes
	Description of Work: 
	Reason for Supplement: Begin Right-of-Way acquisition phase.
	Claiming indirect cost rate yes: Off
	Claiming indirect cost rate no: Yes
	Project Agreement End Date: December 31, 2018
	Additional Right of Way Yes: Yes
	Additional Right of Way No: Off
	Advertisement Date: 
	Previous Agreement/Supplement1: 64300
	Supplement1: 
	Estimate Total Project Funds1: 64300
	Estimated Agency Funds1: 8680.00
	Estimated Federal Funds1: 55620.00
	PE Other 1: Consultant
	Previous Agreement/Supplement2: 847656.00
	Supplement2: 
	Estimate Total Project Funds2: 847656
	Estimated Agency Funds2: 114434
	Estimated Federal Funds2: 733222.00
	PE Percentage: 
	PE Other 2: Consultant (non-participa)
	Previous Agreement/Supplement3: 700164.00
	Supplement3: 
	Estimate Total Project Funds3: 700164
	Estimated Agency Funds3: 700164
	Estimated Federal Funds3: 
	Previous Agreement/Supplement4: 24000.00
	Supplement4: 
	Estimate Total Project Funds4: 24000
	Estimated Agency Funds4: 3240.00
	Estimated Federal Funds4: 20760
	Total PE Cost Estimate: 1636120
	Total PE Cost Estimate2: 0
	Total PE Cost Estimate3: 1636120
	Total PE Cost Estimate4: 826518
	Total PE Cost Estimate5: 809602
	Previous Agreement/Supplement6: 
	Supplement6: 20000
	Estimate Total Project Funds5: 20000
	Estimated Agency Funds5: 
	Estimated Federal Funds5: 20000
	Right of Way Other 1: Consultant
	Previous Agreement/Supplement7: 
	Supplement7: 380000
	Estimate Total Project Funds6: 380000
	Estimated Agency Funds6: 
	Estimated Federal Funds6: 380000
	Right of Way Percentage: 100
	Right of Way Other 2: Right-of-Way
	Previous Agreement/Supplement8: 
	Supplement8: 380000
	Estimate Total Project Funds7: 380000
	Estimated Agency Funds7: 
	Estimated Federal Funds7: 380000
	Previous Agreement/Supplement9: 
	Supplement9: 20000
	Estimate Total Project Funds8: 20000
	Estimated Agency Funds8: 
	Estimated Federal Funds8: 20000
	Total R/W Cost Estimate: 0
	Total R/W Cost Estimate2: 800000
	Total R/W Cost Estimate3: 800000
	Total R/W Cost Estimate4: 0
	Total R/W Cost Estimate5: 800000
	Previous Agreement/Supplement11: 
	Supplement11: 
	Estimate Total Project Funds9: 0
	Estimated Agency Funds9: 
	Estimated Federal Funds9: 
	Construction Other 1: 
	Previous Agreement/Supplement12: 
	Supplement12: 
	Estimate Total Project Funds10: 0
	Estimated Agency Funds10: 
	Estimated Federal Funds10: 
	Other 2: 
	Previous Agreement/Supplement13: 
	Supplement13: 
	Estimate Total Project Funds11: 0
	Estimated Agency Funds11: 
	Estimated Federal Funds11: 
	Contruction Percentage: 
	Other 3: 
	Previous Agreement/Supplement14: 
	Supplement14: 
	Estimate Total Project Funds12: 0
	Estimated Agency Funds12: 
	Estimated Federal Funds12: 
	Previous Agreement/Supplement15: 
	Supplement15: 
	Estimate Total Project Funds13: 0
	Estimated Agency Funds13: 
	Estimated Federal Funds13: 
	Previous Agreement/Supplement16: 
	Supplement16: 
	Estimate Total Project Funds14: 0
	Estimated Agency Funds14: 
	Estimated Federal Funds14: 
	Total CN Cost Estimate: 0
	Total CN Cost Estimate2: 0
	Total CN Cost Estimate3: 0
	Total CN Cost Estimate4: 0
	Total CN Cost Estimate5: 0
	Total Project Cost Estimate: 1636120
	Total Project Cost Estimate2: 800000
	Total Project Cost Estimate3: 2436120
	Total Project Cost Estimate4: 826518
	Total Project Cost Estimate5: 1609602
	Agency Offical Title: 
	Date Executed2: 
	Agency: 
	Supplement Number: 
	Federal Aid Project Number: 
	Agreement Number: 


